

MINERAL PLANNING COMMISSION Minutes

January 16, 2025 at 6:30 PM

312 Mineral Avenue Mineral Virginia 23117

Phone: 540-894-5100 | townclerk@townofmineral.net

CALL TO ORDER

As required by the MPC Bylaws, the Clerk opened the meeting.

ROLL CALL

Present:

Lauren Ball

Edward Kube

Teresa Newton

Jim Snider

Brian Thaler

Tony Williams

Absent:

One vacant position

Others Present:

Nicole Washington, Zoning Administrator

Stephanie Dorman, Town Clerk

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

All in attendance stood for the Pledge of Allegiance.

The Clerk advised the Mineral Town Council did not appoint a liaison for this year. The Zoning Administrator added that the decision was made to not appoint a liaison from Council as there is staff at the MPC meetings.

ANNUAL ORGANIZATION MEETING

Election of Mineral Planning Commission Chairman

The Clerk opened the floor for nominations of a Mineral Planning Commission Chairman. Commissioner Ball nominated Commissioner Kube. No other nominations were made and the nomination went to a vote.

Jim Snider - yes

Teresa Newton - yes

Brian Thaler - yes

Edward Kube - abstain

Tony Williams - yes

Lauren Ball - yes

Motion passed 5-0-1.

Chairman Kube took over conducting the meeting.

Chairman Kube thanked the Commission for voting for him and for the work they accomplished last year. There is still work to be done and he is looking forward to a successful year.

Election of Mineral Planning Commission Vice-Chairman

Commissioner Kube opened the floor for nominations of vice chairman.

Commissioner Williams nominated Commissioner Snider.

Motion to close the nominations by Williams and seconded by Ball.

Jim Snider - yes

Teresa Newton - yes Brian Thaler - yes Edward Kube -Tony Williams - yes Lauren Ball - yes Motion passed 6-0-0. No other nominations were made and the nomination went to a vote. Lauren Ball - yes Tony Williams - yes Edward Kube - yes Brian Thaler - yes Jim Snider - abstain Motion passed 5-0-1. **Election of Mineral Planning Commission Secretary** Chairman Kube suggested the Commission appoints the Town Clerk, Stephanie Dorman, to be the MPC Secretary. Motion by Newton to close nominations. No other nominations were made and the nomination went to a vote. Jim Snider - yes Teresa Newton - yes Brian Thaler - yes Edward Kube - yes Tony Williams - yes Lauren Ball - yes Motion passed 6-0-0.

Bylaws

The addition of page numbers will be added to the Bylaws.

Commissioner Newton had a question about section 1-2(A) and what would happen when more than one item happens at a time? Chairman Kube advised the intent is so the Commission does not get distracted.

Under Section 2(I)(A) the first suggested amendment was changing the meeting back to the third Thursday of the month. The Commission and the Zoning Administrator discussed scheduling and whether the third Thursday or fourth Thursday of the month was more convenient for the Commissioners. Commissioners also discussed the potential for MPC meetings to happen the same week as MTC meetings, if kept on the third Thursday of the month.

Motion for MPC to schedule their monthly meeting on the fourth Thursday of month with the exception of November and December which will be held on the third Thursday made by Snider and seconded by Thaler.

Jim Snider - yes

Teresa Newton - yes

Brian Thaler - yes

Edward Kube - yes

Tony Williams - yes

Lauren Ball - yes

Motion passed 6-0-0.

Amendment to Section 2(II)(A) changing the vote to five of the seven members. The Bylaws currently state four of the five members, but last year the MTC voted to allow a seven person commission

Amendment to Section 2(V)(D) to change the retention guideline to follow that of the Library of Virginia.

Amendment to Section 2(VIII)(A) addition of the Town Manager to the current language.

Amendment to Section 2(VIII)(C) addition of language that in a roll call vote each Commission is required to either vote or abstain when called upon.

Motion to approve Bylaws as amended by Newton and seconded by Ball.

Jim Snider - yes

Teresa Newton - yes

```
Brian Thaler - yes
```

Edward Kube - yes

Tony Williams - yes

Lauren Ball - yes

Motion passed 6-0-0.

Meeting schedule

This portion of the agenda was handled during the discussion of the Bylaws.

Introduction of New Commissioner

The new Commissioner, Brian Thaler, introduced himself. Thaler has lived in the Town for four years. He would like to publicly note that his appointment was made before his husband assumed the role of acting Town Mayor. He is very excited to see what work can be done in the Town and sees the potential for the Town. There is room for upward mobility and he is looking forward to moving forward with renewed efficiency.

The Commission welcomed the new Commissioner.

Resignation of Commissioner Dye

Commissioner Dye has moved outside of Town limits which disqualifies her from the Commission.

Motion to accept her resignation with regret and to ask Council to post the vacancy made by Newton and seconded by Snider.

All Commissioners are in unanimous consensus to accept the resignation and to ask Council to post the vacancy on any means available.

Jim Snider - yes

Teresa Newton - yes

Brian Thaler - yes

Edward Kube - yes

Tony Williams - yes

Lauren Ball - yes

Motion passed 6-0-0.

The Commission thanks Nikki Dye for her service and wishes her family the best.

Adoption of the Agenda

Motion to adopt agenda as submitted by Ball and seconded by Newton

Jim Snider - yes

Teresa Newton - yes

Brian Thaler - yes

Edward Kube - yes

Tony Williams - yes

Lauren Ball - yes

Motion passed 6-0-0.

Public Comment

Chairman Kube opened the floor for public comment. When asked if Bob Spedden would like to comment he advised he would wait until the portion of the agenda regarding a possible street closure. When asked, Cathie Spedden did not have a comment.

Chairman Kube closed the public comment portion of the agenda.

Approval of Minutes

10.17.2024 Minutes

Amendments:

- Page 4, paragraph 5 amended to say "Chairman Kube advised there is still plenty that the MPC can review,"
- Page 5, paragraph 2, amended to remove the line "Commissioners discuss how the Town cannot just fix the zoning."

Commissioners discussed the minutes and potential changes but ultimately only made the above two amendments.

Motion to approve the minutes as amended by Newton and seconded by Snider.

Lauren Ball - abstain

Tony Williams - yes

Edward Kube - yes

Brian Thaler - abstain

Jim Snider - yes

Vote passes 4-0-2.

New Business

1. Planning Commission Meetings

This was discussed during the "Bylaws" portion of the agenda.

2. Discussion of Overlay District Plan

The Zoning Administrator advised she is working with Thomas Jefferson Planning Group regarding the Overlay District and they may be able to attend MPC's February meeting to discuss their ideas.

3. Capital Improvement Plan

Chairman Kube asked that this item be added to the agenda as the Comprehensive Plan is supposed to be reviewed by MPC yearly and passed to MTC for budget purposes.

The Zoning Administrator will have ideas to present to MPC at their next meeting. She would like to get a guideline for the Town's infrastructure. She would also like to present a long term plan as well.

Commissioner Snider would like to include steps by Luck Park.

Commissioner Newton would like to add signage regarding speed on Louisa Avenue. The Zoning Administrator added that speeding is an issue also on Main Street.

Commissioners and the Zoning Administrator discussed needing VDOTs involvement for studies. The Zoning Administrator was in contact with VDOT and a stop sign is being added to Railroad Avenue.

REPORTS

Zoning Administrator

The Zoning Administrator did not have an update about Miller's Market. She is waiting to hear back from VDOT for the engineered plan.

An application for the PUD has been submitted. The Zoning Administrator has sent a letter in response to the application.

The Zoning Administrator is working with the Town Attorney for matters regarding zoning. A narrative for the PUD was originally approved as a resolution, so that resolution is what will need to be worked off of.

The Commission and the Zoning Administrator discussed the request, timeline of the application, and the parties that would need to be involved.

There have been issues with how the water lines have been installed. With developments happening quickly, the Town has had to develop lines and have not been able to replace other lines. The Town has addressed leaks over the summer and is now at a 12% loss.

The Zoning Administrator has had discussions regarding alleys. It is her understanding that there is a moratorium and if that is true, she believes it should be lifted. The process that she hopes to put in place for alley or road closures is to go out and investigate the specific area. She would develop a checklist of items for her to look at and consider for each case individually.

The Zoning Administrator passed out a summary regarding 8th Street. There had been a discussion about closing the road, which she is against, as it can be an access street or utility easement. She advises that portions of 8th Street have already been abandoned and causes a sharp turn.

A landowner is trying to receive access to her landlocked property and the Zoning Administrator thinks the best solution is to grant the homeowner an access easement. The Zoning Administrator does not believe that closing 8th Street is a viable option.

Chairman Kube pointed out that this started as a general discussion that moved to a specific closure, which was not advertised.

Chairman Kube asked if this has ever happened before within the Town and Vice-Chairman Snider advised that it happened on 7th Street.

It is the Zoning Administrator's goal to make the Town's grid more efficient.

It is the Chairman's understanding that the Town has either only opened or closed roads. He felt uneasy discussing the matter without the Town notifying the adjoining land owners. The Zoning Administrator pointed out that one of the land owners is present and it is her understanding that the other landowner would not attend a meeting. The Zoning Administrator clarified that this is just for an easement, not a road closure.

Commissioner Newton questioned why the Town would need to give an easement. The Zoning Administrator responded that if the road is ever developed, it would be a safety issue.

Commissioner Ball believes that easements are granted with great frequency in rural areas and that the Town would not be signing over ownership of the land but rather that the resident may utilize the Town's undeveloped road to access their property.

Chairman Kube interjected, adding that previously residents petitioned for the closure of 8th Street and it was denied. He asked how can the Town be certain that by granting a right of way

will not have future impact on development? The Zoning Administrator advised that she does not believe that 8th Street should be used as a through street as it would be dangerous to the neighborhood. The Town would potentially be granting an access easement which would still allow for utilities to use the easement.

It was Chairman Kube's opinion that the MPC needs legal advice on the matter.

Bob Spedden spoke about how he had tried to vacate an alley and have 8th Street closed. He was granted the alley but closing the street was declined.

The Zoning Administrator clarified that there is not an application for road closure but rather someone asking for an access easement.

The Commissioners and Zoning Administrator discussed the need for MPC's involvement in the matter and whether or not this subject could go directly to the Town Council.

Commissioner Thaler asked the Zoning Administrator for clarification on the matter; if she is solely asking for the opinion of the MPC or if this discussion is for a specific proposal? Mrs. Washington advised this was solely an informational meeting.

The Commissioners and Zoning Administrator discussed whether a public hearing is needed. The Zoning Administrator advised she is trying to do her due diligence by having a discussion with the MPC.

Commissioner Snider agreed that the road should not be used as a through street for accessing the Town.

The potential applicant, Dr. Covert, would like a chance to speak to the MPC but felt that she was being denied the opportunity. The Chairman clarified that he had not called on her to speak yet as the Spedden's were at the meeting first.

Dr. Covert advised that there are only three options for her to access her land: 1) road closure 2) opening the street or 3) an easement. She would just like access to her land.

It was the Chairman's opinion that if someone is wanting a road closure, opening, or easement there needs to be an application and it is to be reviewed and that this is not something that the Zoning Administrator or Mayor should be able to grant on their own authority. He continued, there needs to be transparency in the process as it does impact people. He added that the potential applicant is a new owner and had not advised MPC on what she plans on using the land for.

Commissioner Ball asked for clarification on the three lots and if the lots were behind the Spedden's.

The Zoning Administrator clarified the lots and that this was meant to just be a discussion as an application has not yet been filed. The application would go directly to the Town Council, however, she is trying to do the planning portion and discuss the potential application with the MPC. She believes it is important to have MPC'c involvement and for everyone to work together.

Commissioner Newton asked if easements can be built on because she does not believe it can be. The Zoning Administrator responded that this is just for access only.

Commissioner Williams added that he appreciated the Zoning Administrator bringing this to MPC so they can be involved. It is his opinion that this conversation has been counterproductive and that the MPC needed to trust the Zoning Administrator as she has consulted with the attorney. He continued that Mrs. Washington needs to be treated with respect as she is trying to bring information to the MPC and is uncomfortable with how the conversation has gone thus far.

Commissioner Newton apologized if the Zoning Administrator feels attacked but she has questions she feels needs to be addressed.

Commissioner Thaler tried to add a comment but was cut off by the Chairman advising that he needed to ask first. Commissioner Thaler asked for clarification on requesting the floor moving forward so everyone is on the same page? The Chairman responded, "that it is a good question and will be dealt with later."

In response to Commissioner Williams' statement, the Chairman agreed the Zoning Administrator is terrific and is knowledgeable, but wanted to know when did the Town start talking about individual streets without notifying the property owners? The Chairman has received complaints about this matter. Previously, streets have either been opened or closed, and he is unaware of the Town granting easements. He believed there needed to be a policy regarding granting easements.

Commissioner Ball followed by adding that the MPC has asked for the past year to be involved and informed. Previously the MPC was only made aware once an application had been submitted. She continued that there is unknown background to this particular issue but when she received the summary she knew this was just for discussion as an application had not been submitted and this meeting was not a public hearing.

Chairman Kube clarified that he approves the agenda and the agenda originally said "Closure of 9th Street," but the agenda was modified to "Possible Street Closure" and yet the MPC is discussing a particular street.

The Zoning Administrator responded that the Chairman knew what this agenda item was about and that it was supposed to be changed to "Discussion of an easement" and provided the Chairman with information on the easement. She again clarified that this is not about a particular application but this matter can come up again in the future and the Zoning Administrator would need to know how to handle this and this was meant solely to be a discussion.

The Chairman wanted adjacent landowners to be notified of an easement, road opening, or road closure and the main issue is awareness. The Chairman shared his ideas on moving forward with an easement.

Dr. Covert stated that the easement does not affect the immediate landowners. She added that it was her belief that there is a bias against her by Chairman Kube and asked that he recuses

¹ The draft agenda had an item listed as "Discussion of Potential closure of 8th Street.

himself. She does not feel it is appropriate that she had been asked about the land use or that the length of time that she has owned the land as part of the consideration process.

Chairman Kube advised Dr. Covert that she does not get to speak as long as she would like to.

There was a continued discussion between Dr. Covert and Chairman Kube.

Commissioner Ball and Commissioner Williams left the meeting at 8:42 pm.

Motion to adjourn by Commissioner Newton and seconded by Commissioner Thaler.

